PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR 18
9 Septenber 1997

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

ECONOM C AND SOOI AL COUNC L
Subst anti ve session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL  SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 18t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Tuesday, 8 July 1997 at 10 a.m

Presi dent : M. GALUSKA (Czech Republic)
|l ater: M. CHONDHURY (Bangl adesh)
(Vi ce-President)
later: M. GALUSKA (Czech Republic)
CONTENTS

OPERATI ONAL ACTIM TIES OF THE UN TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVELOPMENT
COOPERATI ON ( continued ):

(c) REPORTS OF THE EXECUTI VE BOARDS OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS DEVELCPMENT
PROGRAMMVE/ UNI TED NATI ONS PCPULATI ON FUND, THE UN TED NATI ONS
CH LDREN S FUND AND THE WORLD FOOD PROGRAMVE

D ALOGUE WTH THE COUNTRY TEAMVE: CAMBCO A

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunment to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Ceneva.

GE. 97-62544 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

CPERATI ONAL ACTIVI TIES OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS FOR | NTERNATI ONAL DEVEL OPVENT
COCPERATI ON ( continued)

(c) REPORTS OF THE EXECUTI VE BOARDS OF THE UNI TED NATI ONS DEVELCPMENT
PROGRAMMVE/ UNI TED NATI ONS PCPULATI ON FUND, THE UN TED NATI ONS
CH LDREN S FUND AND THE WORLD FOOD PROGRAMVE

(agenda item3 (c)) (E/1997/32, Parts | and Il, E/ 1997/49, E/ 1997/59,
E/ 1997/ 65 and Add. 1 to 4, B/ 1997/72, E/ 1997/89, DP/1997/6, DP/ 1997/ 12,
E/ 1997/ L. 20)

The PRESI DENT proposed that the Council, before enbarking on its

i nformal dial ogue with country teans, should take note of the docunents
subnmitted under agenda item3 (c): Report of the Secretary-CGeneral on
operational activities of the United Nations for international devel opnent
cooperation: followup to policy recommendations of the General Assenbly
(E/ 1997/ 65 and Add. 1-4), the Note by the Secretary-CGeneral on policy issues
arising fromthe reports of the Executive Boards of United Nations funds and
programres (E/ 1997/89), reports of the Executive Board of the United Nations
Devel opment Programme and of the United Nations Popul ation Fund on its first
and second regul ar sessions of 1997 (DP/1997/6 and DP/ 1997/12), the annual
report of the Executive Director of the United Nations Population Fund to the
Econom ¢ and Social Council (E/ 1997/72), the report of the Executive Board of
the United Nations Children's Fund on its first and second regul ar sessions
of 1997 (E/1997/32, Parts | and 11), extract fromthe report of the
Executive Board of the United Nations Children's Fund on its 1997 annual
session (E/1997/L.20), and the annual report of the Executive D rector of the
United Nations Children's Fund to the Econom c and Social Council (E 1997/59).

If there were no objections, he would take it that the Council w shed to
note the aforenenti oned docunents.

[t was so decided .

The PRESIDENT invited the Council to consider docunent E 1997/49,

entitled “Report of the Executive Board of the Wrld Food Progranmme on the
revision of the General Regul ations of the Wrld Food Progranme”, particularly
the annex thereto which contained the proposed new CGeneral Regul ations. That
docunent had al ready been endorsed by the FAO Council.

If there were no objections, he would take it that the Council noted the
report and approved the revised version of the General Regul ati ons contai ned

in the annex thereto.



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 3

M. MEYER (Luxenbourg) asked for delegations to be given nore tine
to study the report.
The PRESIDENT said that the Council would return to the matter at

a | ater stage.
The neeting was suspended at 10.15 a.m and resuned at 10.20 a.m
D ALOGUE WTH COUNTRY TEAVG: CAMBCDI A
The PRESIDENT invited the Council to enbark upon a dial ogue with

the representatives of field offices of the United Nations systemin Canbodi a.
M. MATTHEWS (United Nations Resident Coordinator and UNDP
Resi dent Representative in Canbodia) said that Canbodia had to take up a

threefold challenge: to nove fromconflict to peace and security, froma
centrally planned econony to a narket econony, and froma situation of
poverty for half its people to prosperity for all. Since the elections
organi zed in 1993 by the United Nations Transitional Authority in
Canbodi a (UNTAC), external aid had flowed into the country at the rate of
US$ 500 million per year, in order to contribute to the resettl enent and
rehabilitation of 370,000 refugees and di spl aced persons and to the initia
efforts for the reconstruction of infrastructure and other capital stock. As
the enphasis shifted towards the devel opnent of |ong-termcapacity, it was
becom ng increasingly necessary to invest in raising the quality of human
resources. The popul ation was suffering on nmany counts: undernutrition and
poor education of children, a high proportion of ferale heads of fanmly and
peopl e who had lost a linb or an eye because of |andmnes (it was estinated
that 4-6 mllion | andm nes were still in place), inadequate access to health
services, safe drinking water and sanitation. The rate of HV infection was
thought to be the highest in the region, a probl emaggravated by the
trafficking in women and chil dren

Al parties supported the rule of |law enshrined in the Constitution.
However, nuch rerained to be done in that respect, especially in the areas of
the judiciary, the police, the civil service and the arny. It was essentia
to raise salaries in the public sector, to reduce the arnmed forces and to
provi de derobilized soldiers with alternative ways of nmaking a |iving

The regul atory functions of government were underdevel oped, which
i nhi bited investnment, especially by long-terminvestors. Labour productivity
was | ow and conditions of work in factories gave rise to concern, as did the

human rights situation in general



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 4

Canbodi a was well endowed with forests and water; 85 per cent of
its people lived in rural areas; many had only been resettled for four or
five years. Forest cover had been hal ved since 1972 and the quality of the
renmai ning forests had declined, |leading to increased silting-up of the
G eat Lake (Tonl é Sap) and an increased incidence of flooding. Mreover, the
uncontrol led felling of trees was depriving the Treasury of revenue, a matter
of serious concern to the International Mnetary Fund (I M) and donors.

Since the formati on of the Royal CGovernment in 1993, sone degree of
nmacr oeconom ¢ stability had been achieved: inflation had been brought under
control, the national currency was stable and econonmic growh had averaged
about 6 per cent per annum Infrastructure was bei ng upgraded and credit
schenes had been introduced for the poorer sections of society. For the past
two years there had been a slight surplus in rice production

The agencies of the Joint Consultative Goup on Policy (JC&) had
deliberately drawn up their programm ng docunents to coincide with the
Canbodi an Government's first soci o-econom ¢ devel opnent plan; in so doing they
had endeavoured to ensure conplenentarity and mutual reinforcenent of
activities. They were increasingly follow ng the programme approach. The
agenci es of the JCGP were in favour of national inplenentation, but the weak
managenent and accounting systens and the scarcity of skills were inpeding its
wi despread application. The heads of agency net formally once a nonth as the
resi dent coordinator system A record of the neetings was kept and there was
systematic followup. In 1996, to mark the first International Day for
Poverty Eradication, the resident coordinator systemand the Mnistry of
Pl anni ng had co-sponsored a nati onal sem nar on poverty alleviation, foll owed
by an exhibition and a press conference on United Nati ons Day.

Three theme groups had been created, each chaired by a different agency;
they met about once a nmonth. The administrative officers fromthe agencies
al so net once a nmonth to discuss issues of comon interest.

M. BOREL (Director for Canbodia and Regional Director for

Sout h- East Asia of the Wrld Food Programme (WFP)) said that the transition
fromhumanitarian aid to devel opnment was a very conpl ex task. WP had j ust
finalized its programre for Canbodia, in which it reaffirned the inportance of
devel opnent activities. Al the devel opnent agencies had contributed to that

task. WP shared common interests with many institutions and non-gover nient al



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 5

organi zations (NG3s). It took an active part in the three thene groups set up
by the Resident Coordinator: the group on poverty and food safety, the group
on AIDS and the group on denocracy and hunman rights.

The WFP field office in Canbodi a was al so endeavouring to work towards
the objectives laid down by the major world conferences, including the Wrld
Conference on Wnen, the Wrld Summt for Social Devel opment, the World Summit
for Children and the International Conference on Nutrition.

WFP' s col | aboration with other partners was ained at using food aid in
an effective and rational way, but such aid alone could not solve all the
probl ens.

M. LEFEVRE (Director of the UNESCO Ofice in Canbodia) said that
UNESCO was for the first time fornulating a strategy for Canbodia, with the
aimof providing a better response to the national priorities |aid dow by the
CGovernnent and of coordinating the work of UNESCO with the national five-year
soci o-econom ¢ plan and with the | ong-term programres of the other
United Nations agencies present in the country, especially in the
i npl enrent ati on of the reconmendations of the nmajor international conferences.
For two years UNESCO, in cooperation with UNDP, had been conducting an
i mportant progranmme for the strengthening of national capacity, under which
experts fromthe Canbodi an M nistry of Education, Youth and Sports and UNESCO
experts were setting up a statistics service, conducting the first exhaustive
survey of the country's educational capacity and training over 1,000 education
staff fromall the accessible provinces of the country.

One of the problens encountered concerned the optimzation of aid, for
exanpl e, the attenpt to reconcile the devel opment of the country's human
resources with the country's ability to pay its civil servants salaries that
woul d enable themto carry out their duties, in other words, to ensure that
the aid provided produced lasting results. There was in fact a great risk of
| osing staff who were essential for the country's future.

UNESCO i nvol ved United Nations Volunteers in its programmes. |t worked
in close collaboration with UNFPA in drafting social science textbooks for
secondary teaching. Experience gained in that area showed how difficult it
was to invoke the concepts of public service and individual responsibility
when the State paid its civil servants only about 20 per cent of the incone
essential for survival. In 1998 UNESCO woul d participate with UNFPA and UNDP



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 6

in carrying out the anbitious national census project. In cooperation wth
UNDP and FAQ it had for three years supported the Canbodian Mnistry of the
Environment in a project ainmed at setting up and training a teamresponsible
for the protection of Tonlé Sap - the largest freshwater lake in Asia - and
the surrounding region. In Cctober 1997 the whole of that area was to be
classified by UNESCO as a bi osphere reserve under the Man and the Bi osphere
(MAB) progranmre.

M. PETERSEN (WHO Representative in Canbodia) gave sone exanpl es

of col |l aboration by the United Nations systemin the health sector in

Canbodi a. WHO worked in cl ose cooperation with nmany partners, including nost
of the other specialized agencies. |t was endeavouring to assist Canbodia in
re-establishing its health system As part of that effort the Mnistry of
Heal th was undertaking a programre ainmed at rebuilding its capacity to plan,

i npl enrent and eval uate health services and at coordinating support for the
heal th sector fromdonors and NG3s. Under that programme, a national health
plan and a framework for reformof the health systemhad been drawn up, with
the support of other donors. UN CEF and WHO were cooperating in the field of
essential drugs and vaccines. Under an agreement on division of work reached
in 1992, UN CEF provided support for the supply, storage, distribution and use
of drugs, while WHO contributed to the formulation of a national policy on
drugs and the drafting of legislation and regulations for their production,
inport and sale. Another area of close collaboration between WHO and UN CEF
was the expanded progranme on immuni zation, including polionyelitis

eradi cation. The nunber of people vaccinated had greatly increased and it was
expected that polionyelitis would be eradicated by the year 2000. UNFPA had
played a major role in fornulating a national policy on birth spacing and had
cooperated closely with WHO and UNICEF in formnul ating the previous and present
country progranmes.

The World Bank was playing an increasingly inportant role in the health
field and had cooperated closely with WHOin the formulation of its
programmes, especially those on tuberculosis and nalaria. As M. Matthews had
poi nted out, the situation regarding HV infection and AIDS i n Canbodi a was
alarmng. A technical working group on AIDS had been set up in 1994, prior to
the Joint United Nations Programme on H V/ AIDS (UNAI DS).



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 7

M. LEFEVRE (Director of the UNESCO Ofice in Canbodia) read out
the statement prepared by M. Fauveau, representative of UNFPA in Canbodi a
UNFPA had opened its Canbodia office in 1994 and had opted to share prem ses
wi th UNDP, which had proved extrenely practical. After spending two years on
i npl enenting prelimnary projects, UNFPA, in cooperation with the other
agencies in the JOG had drawn up the first popul ati on progranmre for
Canbodi a (1997-2000), which was synchroni zed with the progranmres of UNDP,
UNI CEF and WFP, together with the first five-year soci o-econom ¢ devel oprent
pl an of the Canbodi an Government. UNFPA had given unstinting support to the
efforts of successive resident coordinators of the United Nati ons systemin
Canbodia to stinmulate and sustain a coordi nated and harnoni zed approach. It
took an active part in joint activities: mnonthly neetings of heads of
agenci es, settlenent of common adm nistrative and security probl ens,
preparations for nmaj or conferences and dissenmnation of their results. The
out st andi ng coordi nation activities during the last three years included:
preparations for major conferences, establishnent of UNAIDS and the thene
group on AIDS, joint negotiation of transitional strategies for the paynent of
sal ary supplenents to officials of the Canbodi an Government coll aborating in
projects financed by the United Nations agencies, preparations for the genera
popul ati on census schedul ed for March 1998 and the common country assessment
currently under way.

M. PETERSEN (WHO read out the statement by the representative of
UN CEF i n Canbodi a.

As the | ead agency for energency assistance, UN CEF had reopened its

office in Phnom Penh as long ago as 1979. Since the arrival of the other
United Nations agencies in the country in 1991, the respective roles had been
nore clearly defined and active col | aborati on between the agenci es had been
instituted. For exanple, the situation analysis of children and wonen in
Canbodi a published by UNCEF in 1995 had been prepared with extensive
contributions fromUNDP, FAQ WP, WHO UNESCO and UNFPA. The fornul ation of
the plan of operations for 1996-2000 had al so benefited fromtechnical advice
fromall those agencies, which had endeavoured to avoi d overl appi ng of
activities and to ensure the conplenentarity of the programme.

UNI CEF and UNESCO were jointly involved in primary education, UNESCO
devel oping curricula and scientific textbooks while UN CEF contributed to
programres for the teaching of the Khmer |anguage and mat hematics. WHO

focused on the eradication of polionyelitis by organizing national



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 8

i mruni zati on days, and UNI CEF continued to assist the Canbodi an Covernnent in
devel opi ng the national imunization programre. That col | aboration was al so
effective at the provincial and local |evels, where UN CEF and UNDP had
reached an agreenent for coordinating the Coomunity Action for Social
Devel opnment Programme and the Canbodi an Resettl ement and Reintegration
Programme (CARERE). WHO FAO UNDP, WP and UNI CEF had col |l aborated in
drawing up a nmultisectoral national plan of action for nutrition which the
Canbodi an Governnent had adopted in early 1997, and all those agencies woul d
play distinctive, conplenmentary roles in inplenenting the plan.

The inpl ementation of the Convention on the R ghts of the Child occupi ed
a prominent place in the work of UNI CEF, which was assisted inits efforts by
the H gh Conmi ssioner for Refugees and the special representative of the
Secretary-General for human rights, especially on the issues of child
trafficking, sexual exploitation and abuse. UN CEF al so coll aborated in the
work carried out by ILO under its International Progranmre on the Himn nation
of Child Labour.

The presence of a UNAIDS advi ser had inproved inter-agency
col | aboration, exenplified in the overall national review organized in
June 1997 in which not only the United Nations agencies but al so some maj or
donors had taken part.

M. MATTHEWS (UNDP) took the floor in his capacity as UNDP

Resi dent Representative. He said that the Executive Board of UNDP woul d

shortly be considering a new country cooperation framework focusing on the

cl earance of |andm nes, rural devel oprent and reformof public adm nistration.
UNDP' s work in Canbodi a was characterized by the dynamc efforts of the
United Nations Volunteers, a |arge nunber of whomwere serving there, and by
the strengthening in all its programes of monitoring and eval uati on,
operations that called for the collaboration of alnmost all the United Nations
agenci es. Capacity devel opnent was a central concern in all activities.
Finally, inits desire to participate in the followup to the major

i nternational conferences of the 1990s, UNDP was maki ng particular efforts to
i npl erent the recomendations of the Beijing Conference on Wnen, sei zing
every opportunity to pronote gender equality. It was al so endeavouring to
follow up the Istanbul Conference on Hunman Settlements by active collaboration
with the United Kingdomand the United States.



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 9

M. PEDERSEN (Cbserver for Dennark) asked whether the specific

situation of Canbodi a, which had experienced nunmerous extrenely severe crises
over a very long period, hanpered the representatives of the United Nations
agencies in their efforts to coordinate their activities. Had those agencies
needed to apply a special method for that purpose or had they kept to the
traditional techniques, designating each organi zation as | ead agency by
rotation?

When taking its decisions, the Econom c¢ and Social Council did not
generally give instructions to the specialized agencies concerning the
coordination of their activities. D d those agencies wi sh to receive such
instructions, or did they prefer to retain their full scope for initiative?

He al so asked whet her the agencies operating in Canbodi a had al ready
provi ded thensel ves with a common framework for devel oprent aid based on a
joint analysis of the situation

Final ly, he asked whet her the agencies had acquired any experience with
the pooling of prem ses and adm nistrative services. |If not, were they
pl anning to nove in that direction and what advantages did they think they
woul d derive from such an approach?

M. HEARD (United Kingdon) asked what had been done to apply the
programre approach to Canbodia. He also wanted to know whet her the thene
groups had been set up in the interests of overall econonic and socia
devel opnent or whether they were intended to pronote a synergistic effect
between action carried out at the international level and action in the field.

Stating his interest in measures designed to pronote gender equality, he
asked whet her any action of that kind had been taken in Canbodi a and whet her
the United Nations Devel oprent Fund for Wmen (UNIFEM played any part in that
respect. He also asked for details on the paynent of salary supplenents to
Canbodi an civil servants.

The representative of UNESCO had referred to the preparations for a
nati onal popul ation census. The devel opnment of capacity could generally
benefit fromthat kind of operation. Ws that the case in Canbodia? The
WHO representative had nentioned the participation of bilateral donors in some
of the activities. Had their reactions been favourable? The representative
of UNFPA had spoken of the establishnment of common indicators; how did that

initiative fit into the programes the Fund was i npl ementi ng?



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 10

In Canbodi a the United Nations agencies had had to start again al nost
fromscratch in 1991. Perhaps sone of the | essons drawn from experience
acqui red under such circunstances coul d be passed on to other country teans.
What was the opinion of the Canbodia tean?

From a broader viewpoint, with reference to the reforns that woul d
affect the entire United Nati ons devel opnent system were there any that the
agenci es operating in Canbodi a al ready found nore useful than others?

M. UJTERLINDE (Netherlands) pointed out that the

General Assenbly had invited the Council to facilitate the follow up of the
results of major conferences in the field. Addressing his remarks primarily
to the representative of WFP, he asked what were the principal constraints on
the integrati on and coordi nation of activities carried out at national |evel.
It seemed to himthat the effects of UNADS in the field had been nerely

to consolidate a control technique that was already well established. He
asked for clarification in that respect.

M. MATTHEWS (UNDP), replying to the representative of Denmark

said that in a country |ike Canbodi a where the needs were so nurerous and
urgent and where there was a great |ack of decision-nmeking and adm nistrative
structures, the agencies had no need to devise an original nethod of
coordination: they sinply had to | ook for concrete ways of giving their
action the nmaxi numeffect. The rotation fornmula was not systematically
applied: when he hinself was absent it was not the deputy resident

coordi nator who replaced himbut the WHO Representative. Rotation of the
chai rmanshi p of the three thene groups was nore systenati c.

The agenci es operating in Canbodi a had not provided thenselves with a
common franmework for devel opnent aid either, taking the view that all they
needed at present was a sinple common platform The nmenbers of the team
bel i eved that the practice of common country assessnent woul d subsequently
make it possible to adopt the common framework of devel opnent aid to be
deci ded on at systemlevel, but at the current stage in Canbodia that woul d be
premat ur e

Referring to the pooling of prem ses and adm nistrative services, he
poi nted out that only UNDP and UNFPA shared the same prenises, together with a

smal |l secretariat. However, the nenbers of the teamwere all convinced that



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 11

proximty would lead to better coordination, even though interacti on between
themwas already very fruitful. Simlarly, cooperation and coordinati on woul d
becone cl oser still when the team had access to the Internet.

M. PETERSEN (WHO stated that the WHO office was participating to

the full in the systemset up in the field by UNADS, in particular, its staff
attended all the informati on neetings, and that gave thema very precise
picture of the situation. He believed that the pooling of certain services,
as had already been done with the security services, was essenti al

M. LEFEVRE (UNESCO said that in Canbodi a UNESCO had for the
first time undertaken to develop a country strategy. That exercise was
provi ng extremely useful because it made use of obvious synergistic effects.
Because of that UNESCO was al ready collaborating with other institutions in a
nunber of projects, in particular for the national popul ation census.

M. MATTHEWS (UNDP), replying to the representative of the

United Kingdom said that UNDP had been practising the progranmre approach in
Canbodi a ever since the initiation of CARERE, which at the outset had been an
emer gency ai d programme but had since becone a programme devoted essentially
to the devel opnent of capacity. It was also a multisectoral programre because
it received support fromWHO FAO and ot her agencies and had al so attracted a
nunmber of bilateral donors. Wth regard to the clearance of |andm nes, UNDP
had nanaged to secure wide recognition for the principle of nationa
i npl enent ation since the programme came al nost entirely under the Canbodi an
authorities, and it had al so secured technical and above all financial support
fromabout a dozen countries. The sane applied to the reformof public
adm ni stration to which UNDP woul d henceforth be able to devote the resources
that a high-quality programme required. Likewi se, with the creation of the
t hene groups, what UNDP was seeki ng was not so rmuch synergi sm bet ween
international action and the action in the field but rather a cl ose adaptation
to national needs. For the time being the teamdid not wish to go beyond that
joint approach designed to neet the specific needs of a specific country.
Efforts to pronote gender equality were being made in the majority of
the major progranmes inplenented in Canbodia. As part of the rura

devel opnent activities undertaken at |ocal |evel, groups which in principle



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 12

had a 40 per cent fenul e menbership had been set up. Moreover, a programre
providing small loans at the | ocal |evel was producing excellent results, with
an 80 per cent fenale clientele.

He was aware that the JOG was opposed in principle to the paynment of
sal ary suppl enents to Canbodi an civil servants, as the practice gave rise to
dependence and inequalities. In Canbodia, however, UNDP had no choice: civi
service salaries were so | ow that supplenents were essential if the civi
servants were to be available fulltine and sufficiently notivated to
assimlate properly the training they were given. In 1996 UNDP had
therefore taken the initiative of establishing a salary scale for al
Uni ted Nations agencies present in Canbodia. The practice should be
har noni zed by 1 January 1998. Certain other donors, both bilateral and
multilateral, were faced by the sane probl em and seened prepared to adopt the
sane scal e.

The devel oprment of conmmon i ndicators was bei ng considered on the
initiative of the CECD Devel opnent Assistance Committee, which considered such
indicators to be useful for the devel opment of capacity.

A nunber of del egations had referred to the broader framework of reform
of the entire United Nations systemfor devel opment. H's own phil osophy was a
sinple one: anything that the systemcould do to neet the country's
devel opnent needs was valid.

Inreply to the representative of the Netherlands, who had asked how t he
Resi dent Coordi nator followed up the maj or conferences, he pointed out that
t he government bodies in Canbodia were so weak that it was still difficult for
themto convert the results of the najor conferences into national programres.
Inits contacts with the public authorities, the teams efforts were devoted
mainly to |l earning about the situation on the ground in as nuch detail as
possi ble. That was what enabled it to decide correctly on what operations to
organi ze, for exanpl e canpai gns agai nst poverty.

M. PETERSEN (WHO, replying to the representative of the

United Kingdom said that coordination anong donors was the responsibility of
the national authorities. The role of the United Nations systemwas to assi st
the Government to acquire the necessary facilities to carry out such

coordination. It was not altogether accurate to say that the agencies were



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 13

starting fromscratch in Canbodia: there was an institutional nenory in the
country, which WHO took into account in its efforts for the restoration of
heal th systens and equi pnent.

I npl ementati on of UNAIDS had | ed to no radi cal changes in the
i nter-agency col |l aboration procedures that had existed previously. After a
sonmewhat slow start to the programme, all activities were currently integrated
within it. The principal effects of the programme had been an injection of
funds, the appointment of a UNAIDS country officer and the officia
establ i shnent of a theme group on the issue.

M. BOREL (WP) stressed that the current action of WFP in
Canbodi a formed part of a continuous process: WP had al ready been present
during the conflict and had worked in collaboration with the Ofice of the
United Nations Border Relief Qperation (UNBRO. The problens it was currently
facing related mainly to the lack of roads and irrigation systens.

The issue of salary supplenents paid to national personnel was an
i mportant problemfor WP, which enpl oyed 600 [ocal staff. Wth the aid of
t he Resident Coordinator, steps had been taken to bring about a gradua
reduction in the amount of the suppl ements.

The specific role of WWP in following up the International Conference on
Nutrition was the mapping of poverty in Canbodia, in collaboration with the
various field organizations and with the aid of the UNCTAD i nfornati on system
on the basis of various data (types of crops, incone |evels, condition of
infrastructure, etc.) collected at commune level. Qher organizations,
including the United States Agency for International Devel oprent (USAI D), had
di spl ayed an interest in that project, which was to be inplenented in the
north-western region of the country under a coll aboration agreenent recently
signed wi th CARE International

M. LEFEVRE (UNESCO pointed out that when the reform of
United Nations operational activities in the Canbodi an context was di scussed,
three aspects needed to be taken into consideration: the country was still
suffering severely fromthe effects of the war, Canbodia' s own capacity in
terns of human resources was conpletely nobilized, and its admnistration did
not have sufficient funds for the continued enpl oynment of the staff currently

bei ng trained by the cooperation agencies. In any case, there was clearly a



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 14

wi de gap between the levels of efficacy required by the project staff and the
local nmentalities. Wth regard to financial resources, considerable efforts
had al ready been nmade by I M- and the World Bank to nobilize new resources and
allocate themto activities directed towards a culture of peace. In nore
general terns, the inplenmentation of reforns would call for nore thorough
consi deration by the organi zations of the training of the staff who woul d be
responsi ble for putting the recommendations into effect in the light of |oca
realities.

M. GAQERISME (Qobserver for Haiti) asked the representative of WP

to describe how the “food for work” programre was applied in Canbodia. How

was that programre received by the |ocal population and what results did it
produce in the context of the devel oprment efforts?
M. BAHAMONDES (Canada) asked how UNDP had set about integrating

t he devel opnent of capacity into the franework of cooperation wth Canbodi a

Did food aid programmes such as the “food for work” progranmre have
repercussions on the narket, for exanple by leading to a distortion of food
prices, and if so what was being done to overcone that? Wre the bilateral
donors involved in the forrmul ation of the framework of cooperation with
Canbodi a?

M. CHATAIGNER (France) noted that the success of the resident

coordi nator systemin Canbodi a was apparently accounted for by the pragmati sm
of the teamworking there. He asked whether the people in charge of the
various funds and progranmes received precise instructions fromtheir
respecti ve head offices and what were the procedures for reporting on their
activities. Ws the common nanual drafted by the Consultative Conmttee on
Programe and (perational Questions (CCPOQ read and used by those working in
the field? D d the Resident Coordinator, who was al so the UNDP

Resi dent Representative, have sufficient tine and support to carry out those
two tasks? Did he have to report both to the Ofice of United Nati ons System
Support and Services and to the Regional Ofice for Asia? D d the nmany
changes nmade in the policies and procedures of WP bring that agency closer to
the way in which the other funds and programmes operated? Finally, was the
United Nations Capital Devel opnent Fund (UNCDF) bringing additional capital

i nto Canbodi a?



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 15

Ms. SIRVE (Finland) asked what obstacles the funds and programmes
encountered in the devel opnment of capacity. To what extent were progranmmes in
Canbodi a i npl emrented by national s? Apart from WO were ot her organi zations
working in collaboration with the World Bank and | M- in specific areas? Had a
deadl i ne been set for the preparation of the country strategy note?

M. ALOM (Bangl adesh) said he would |ike to know on what authority
political questions had been raised at the nonthly neetings of the resident
coordinator system He felt that represented interference in an area that was
outsi de the conpetence of the United Nati ons agenci es responsible for
devel opnent cooperation in Canbodi a under the auspi ces of UNDP. Moreover, he
suggested it would be useful to bring the reports on those neetings to the
notice of the national authorities so that they could benefit fromthem

M. MATTHEWS (UNDP), in reply to the representative of Canada

said that the devel opment of capacity in Canbodia was principally concerned
with two sectors: the upgradi ng of human resources in order to provide the
country with the skills lost as a result of genocide, and the establishnment of
an appropriate institutional framework, nanely the reformof the

adm ni stration, an essential step for setting up new deci si on-maki ng
structures. A nmjor problemin that context was the loss of civil servants
who, once trained, were attracted by other jobs on account of the extrenely
low salaries paid in the civil service. Collaboration with bilateral donors
for the forrmulation of the country cooperation franework took place at the
stage of the drafting of the consultative note; the bilateral and nultil ateral
partners and the NGOs were invited to comrent on the draft, which was
subsequently submtted to all the funding bodies in Bangkok.

Inreply to the representative of France, he stated that there was no
shortage of instructions fromthe respective head offices but that the degree
of decentralization and del egation of authority varied considerably from one
organi zation to anot her, which sonetimes sl owed down the deci si on- nmaki ng
process. The resident coordinator systemhad to report on its activates to
the United Nations once a year; the report prepared for that purpose was the
out cone of very thorough teanwork. The common nmanual prepared by the CCPOQ
was a useful tool for the menbers of the field team who made any necessary
comrents on it at the monthly coordination neetings. It was still somewhat

early to assess the inpact of UNCDF in Canbodia, as the first projects had



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 16

been approved only recently, but it could already be stated that UNCDF woul d
play an inportant role in supporting activities in rural areas, by

suppl ementing the capital provided by bilateral donors under the CARERE
programe, for exanple.

Inreply to the representative of Finland, he stressed that the scarcity
of national resources and the | ack of experienced staff restricted the
possibilities for national inplenmentation. The funds and programes i nsisted
on national control of projects as far as possible, but it would be premature
at the present stage to entrust responsibility for the financial aspects of
operations to the national authorities. The resident coordinator system
worked in close collaboration with the World Bank under the support programre
for the nonitoring and anal ysis of poverty; there was very fruitfu
col | aboration with the Wrld Bank, FAO and the NGO “d obal Wtness” to draw
the attention of international public opinion to the problemof intensive
deforestation in Canbodia. Collaboration with I M- had principally concerned
the re-establishnent of the central banking system and woul d henceforth
concentrate on the formulation of fiscal policies. There were no plans to
prepare a country strategy note in the near future, priority currently being
given to the joint assessnment, which should be conpleted by the end of 1997.

In response to the concerns expressed by the representative of
Bangl adesh, he wi shed to nake it clear that political matters did not cone
within the purview of the resident coordinator system Nevertheless, the
instability of the political climate in Canbodi a provided justification for
inviting the representative of the Secretary-CGeneral in the country to the
mont hly neetings of the team of fund and programre nmanagers so as to keep them
informed of political devel opments inasnmuch as those devel opnments i nfl uenced
work in the field. The reports of those neetings had not hitherto been
brought to the notice of the national authorities, but the suggesti on made by
the representative of Bangl adesh deserved consideration.

M. Chowdhury (Bangl adesh) took the Chair

M. PETERSEN (WHO said he col | aborated closely with the other

Uni ted Nations agencies operating in the field, both because he had recei ved

express instructions fromWHO to do so and because such col | aboration was a



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 17

necessity under the |ocal conditions; he gave details of that collaboration in
his half-yearly reports. WHO had established guidelines concerning the
participation of its representatives in the resident coordinator system

M. BOREL (WP), replying to the representative of Haiti, pointed
out that WFP activities in Canbodia were in a transitional phase between
emer gency assi stance and devel opnent. Since |ate 1994, however, WP had been
i npl enenti ng programres that were rmuch nore oriented towards the devel opnent
and reconstruction of the country, in particular helping to restore
communi cations and irrigation facilities, which were the greatest needs of the
villages. It worked with the village devel opnment commttees and with the
Covernnent, in particular with the Mnistry for Rural Devel oprent. He
stressed that no project could be carried out w thout coordination. The WP
country programre to be submitted to the Council in January 1998 had been
drawn up with the participation of other funds and programres and with the
Covernnent. He pointed out to the representative of Canada that the food aid
could not result in any distortion of markets in Canbodia, since WFP did not
inmport rice but purchased it locally with the donations it received.

M. RUNGE (Germany) asked the UNDP Resident Representative to what
extent it was possible, in viewof the prevailing situation in Canbodia, to
i npl enent progranmes for the devel opment of capacity, particularly in the
provi nces. He also suggested it mght be nore sensible for educationa
programes to be inpl enented by UNESCO rat her than by UN CEF

M. GaSluska (Czech Republic) resuned the Chair

Ms. WAHAB (Cbserver for Indonesia), noting with satisfaction that
there appeared to be no problemw th inter-agency coordination in Canbodi a,
questioned whether it was really necessary to establish a new coordination
nmechanismin the field. Noting also that ASEAN was taking an active part in
the recovery programre for Canbodia, she expressed the viewthat it would be
nost beneficial for the United Nations systemto cooperate with regiona
or gani zat i ons.

M. MABILANGAN (Philippines) asked what neasures had been taken or

were planned in order to follow up the major international conferences. He
al so asked whet her anythi ng was bei ng done to renedy the problem nentioned by
the Resident Coordinator, of the disparity between the instructions given by

the various head offices to their field staff. Had any conflicts arisen



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 18

bet ween the head offices on organi zational natters? Finally, he would be
interested to know what was the role of the regional offices in directing the
activities of the national offices.

M. DLAMN (Cbserver for Swaziland), enphasizing the futility of
any undertaking that did not have God's backing, stressed the need for the
field teans not to work in isolation but to coordinate their work with that of
the religious authorities. He was inpressed by the way in which UNESCO
al ways attentive to needs and aware of the problens, carried out its
activities in Canbodia, and expressed the hope that nore resources woul d be
put at its disposal. He expressed surprise that there were so few wonen in
the field teans, as he felt that their special sensitivity could be a val uable
asset. Finally he warned agai nst any bias concerning the policy foll owed by
governnents. Field teans were there to light the way for governnents, not to
contest their policies.

M. MARCH (Australia) said that the dialogue with the field teans
was extrenely fruitful for the Council. He asked whether the representatives
of the system in view of their operational experience, felt it was better to
concentrate activities on a fewpriority areas or to conmt resources in all
areas and wait for donors to take over the funding.

M. BRAHM (Ml aysia) said that the snooth operation of
i ntegration and coordination in Canbodia was due in part to the individuals
serving there. However, such an inportant matter could not be |left to chance
coor di nati on shoul d be the outcone of deliberate action and it should be
institutionalized. He felt it would be desirable, whenever a neeting of
resi dent coordinators took place, to invite a representative of the host
country to attend. Moreover, he asked what the representatives of the
Uni ted Nations agenci es thought of the idea, which mght be put forward by the
Secretary-CGeneral as part of the second stage of reforns, of setting up a
United Nations group for devel opnent in the field.

M. HEIN (Coserver for FAO said that the FAO representative in
Canbodi a, who had unfortunately been unable to travel to Geneva, had prepared
a brief statement giving a nunber of exanples of inter-agency cooperation,
particularly in respect of infrastructure, devel opnent, irrigation works and
forestry. Copies of that statement woul d be nmade avail abl e to del egati ons.

One of the strong points of the United Nations funds and programres was their



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 19

ability to nobilize their partners within the system even the smallest ones.
As far as the followup of the International Conference on Nutrition was
concerned, that woul d be done by nmeans of the existing nechani sns, such as
t hene groups, and woul d be a col | aborative exerci se.

M. MATTHEWS (Resident Coordinator), replying to the question

rai sed by the representative of France concerning the support received by the
Resi dent Coordinator and the tinme at his disposal, said he spent al nost half
his time on his duties as Resident Coordinator. As he was al so responsible
for security, he had little time left to fulfil his role as UNDP Resi dent
Representative, but he had the good fortune of having an excellent deputy. He
wel comed the support recently given to the resident coordi nator systemin the
formof a small budget, which he hoped it woul d be possible to increase.

As to the extent to which it was currently possible to devel op capacity
in Canbodia, he stated that activities in that respect were easier in the
provinces than in the capital, where politics tended to present an obstacle to
any initiatives. He also said that UNDP was cooperating with ASEAN and had
just decided to allocate resources to suppl enent those that the countries of
the Association had nobilized in support of Canbodi a' s menbership

He inforned the representative of the Philippines that any disparities
between the head offices related not to the instructions they gave to their
field representatives but to the degree of latitude they allowed them Wth
regard to the followup of international conferences, he had al ready referred
to the very specific progranmes set up to assist governments in the better
targeting of their activities to control poverty, in accordance with the
deci sions taken at the Copenhagen Conference, and al so the nmeasures taken as a
result of the Beijing Conference. On the other hand, it was very difficult to
find partners w thin the Canbodi an Governnment to col |l aborate in the follow up
of the R o de Janeiro summt neeting.

Inreply to the questions put by the representative of Swaziland, he
said the representatives of the United Nations in Canbodi a worked in cl ose
cooperation with denomnational NG in many fields. He accepted that
governnent policy was not open to criticismin itself: the problemwas that
it was difficult to inplement that policy if the Governnent did not take the

necessary deci sions.



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 20

Wth regard to the remarks made by the representative of Australi a,
concerning the choice between action limted to certain priority areas and
nore broadl y-based action, he explained that UNDP had substantially reduced
the scope of its programre and was henceforth concentrating on four major
areas of activity. It commtted sufficient resources to get the process under
way pending the arrival of contributions fromother donors. That approach had
so far proved fruitful. Finally, he explained to the representative of
Mal aysi a that coll aboration was not left to chance but was increasingly being
organi zed. Wth regard to the proposals that were to be made in the second
stage of the reforms, any reformthat led to nore effective work in the field
woul d be favourably received.

M. PETERSEN (WHO said he did not think there was any need to set

up a new coordinati on nechanismin Canbodi a, since the existing arrangenents
had proved their efficacy. Wth regard to ASEAN, he stated that the WHO
regional offices in Manila and New Del hi had recently signed a nmenorandum of
agreenent with that Association. There were a |arge nunber of woren in WHO
and at one tinme they had accounted for half the staff. Neverthel ess, he
bel i eved t hat geographical representati on was equal ly inportant.

M. BOREL (WP) said that WP enpl oyed many wonen in the field
who were not afraid of working in the front line. Their nunbers depended nore
or less on chance. Wth regard to the reduction in the scope of activities,
he said that the programme his organi zation was to submt for Canbodia in
January 1998 woul d concentrate on three najor areas: public works and village
devel opnent, inprovenent of hunman resources and i nmredi ate food aid.

M. LEFEVRE (UNESCO), referring to the respective roles of UNESCO
and UNICEF in education in Canbodia, said that the problens were so enornous
that it was necessary to share the tasks. UN CEF, which had been present in
the country for a longer period, had acquired a strong position in education,
and in its capacity as a fund it was often able to respond nore easily to the
needs. At the sane tine, UNESCO had many projects in prospect and was
col | aborating very closely with UNNCEF in |literacy canpai gns.

Referring to the comments nade by the representative of Swaziland, he
stressed the inportance of religion in Canbodia in all aspects of life.
Keepi ng in touch with the needs and understandi ng how they coul d be net was

the approach followed by UNESCOin its efforts to be effective, and that was



E/ 1997/ SR 18
page 21

an approach shared by others. Wth regard to the question of integration and
cooperation raised by the representative of Mal aysia, he said the nost

i mportant factor in good cooperation was people. It was therefore of cardina
i mportance to inprove the recruitnent and training of the staff of the funds
and progranmes.

The PRESIDENT  warmy thanked the entire teamof United Nations

representatives in Canbodia for attending the meeting and for the nost

interesting presentations they had given of their work.

The neeting rose at 1.15 p.m




